HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
January 31, 2006
1:38 P.M

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmittee neeting to
order at 1:38:47 PM

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representati ve Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Jim Hol m

Representative Mke Kelly
Representative Beth Kerttul a
Representative Carl Moses

Representati ve Bruce Weyhrauch

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representati ve Reggi e Joul e

ALSO PRESENT

Representati ve Bob Lynn; M ke Pawl owsKki , Staff,
Representative Kevin Meyer; Mirc Antrim  Comm ssioner,
Departnent  of Corrections; Anne  Carpeneti, Assi st ant

Attorney Ceneral, Legal Services Section-Juneau, Crim nal
Di vi sion, Departnment of Law

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Duane Bannock, Director, D vision of Mot or  Vehi cl es,
Departnment of Adm nistration, Anchorage; Gordon Severson,
Anchorage Municipal MIlitary & Veterans Conm ssion, Chapter
675, Anchorage; Ed Knoebel, d ennallen

SUVVARY

HB 245 An Act relating to registration and |icense plate
fees for Purple Heart recipients, prisoners of
war, Congressional Medal of Honor recipients, and
spouses of current prisoners of war.

HB 245 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

HB 326 An Act relating to harassnent.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 01/31/06 1:38 P. M



CS HB 326 (JUD) was reported out of Conmttee with
a “do pass” recommendation and with three zero
notes by the Alaska Court System the Departnent
of Law and the Departnment of Public Safety.

#HB245

1:39:42 PM

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 245

An Act relating to registration and |icense plate fees
for Purple Heart recipients, prisoners of war,
Congr essi onal Medal of Honor recipients, and spouses of
current prisoners of war.

REPRESENTATI VE BOB LYNN, SPONSOR, stated that the bill would
allow the Division of Mtor Vehicles (DW) to design and
issue special registration plates for one noncomerci al
nmotor vehicle to a person who has been awarded the
Congr essi onal Medal of Honor. He stated that those people
have already paid a high price and should receive that
honor .

Representative Lynn added that the spouses also serve in a
di fferent way. The plate would be for both parties. He
urged favorabl e consideration of the bill.

1: 42: 59 PM

DUANE BANNOCK, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), DI RECTOR,
DI VI SI ON OF MOTOR VEHI CLES (DW) , DEPARTNMENT OF
ADM NI STRATI ON, ANCHORAGE, offered to answer questions
regardi ng the inpact of the |egislation.

1: 44: 33 PM

Vice Chair Stoltze asked if there were any Pearl Harbor
survivors still alive. M. Bannock thought that there were
seven registered survivors in Alaska; that information was
taken from 2004 dat a. In 2004, there were a total of 18
vehicles registered with that classification.

1: 45: 55 PM

GORDON SEVERSQN, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), ANCHORAGE
MUNI CI PAL M LITARY & VETERANS COW SSION, CHAPTER 675,
ANCHORAGE, encour aged passage of the legislation. He noted
that he already has a Purple Heart license plate but that
the legislation would benefit other Purple Heart recipients
within the State. Additionally, the legislation recognizes
wounded Iraqi veterans. He suggested that those people
woul d be privileged to be recognized in such a manner. He
urged passage of HB 245.

1: 48: 34 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 01/31/06 1:38 P. M



ED KNOEBEL, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), GLENNALLEN
encouraged passage of the legislation and offered to help
with design of the plates. He indicated that he was a Wrld
War |1 veteran with a Purple Heart. He stated that there
are a total of 6,000 Purple Heart nenbers throughout the
country with 30 or 40 living in Al aska.

1: 51: 06 PM

Co-Chair Meyer asked if there would be a one-tinme charge of
$5,000 dollar for the new plate. Representative Lynn said
that was correct and thought that cost was excessive.

1: 52: 18 PM

M. Bannock explained that the $5,000 dollars would include
a couple different itens. He added that any change nade to
the current conputer system requires many hours of work.
The systemis very old and every license plate is assigned
for every type of classification of autonobile. The system
is not easily anended and the proposed cost includes
redesi gn charges. Those license plates are designed and
ordered on an individual basis, which increases a little

the per plate cost.

1: 53: 55 PM

Co-Chair Meyer pointed out that there are no Prisoners of
war (POWN or spouses of current POWs at this tinme in
Al aska. He asked if the plate nust be designed at this
tine. M. Bannock informed nenbers that currently, there
are a POW license plate. What is being proposed is who
would be entitled to receive free registration. Those
persons would qualify for the free registration if they were
a spouse of a current prisoner of war. Representative Lynn
acknow edged that was the intent.

Representative Holminquired if there already exists a netal
of honor pl ate.

1: 55: 22 PM

M. Bannock replied that there is not one and would need to
be designed. That person would not pay for both the plate
and/ or the vehicle registration.

Representative Holminquired if there were current netal of
honor residents in Alaska. M. Bannock did not know.

1: 55: 56 PM

Representative Hol m asked how nmuch it would cost to design a
pl at e. M. Bannock replied that nunber was variable
depending on the rendition. He recommended that a group be

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 01/31/06 1:38 P. M



assigned to design the plate, keeping the cost around $500
dollars for a sanple plate.

1: 56: 56 PM

AT EASE: 1: 57: 22 PM

RECONVENE: 1: 57: 55 PM

1: 57: 58 PM

Co-Chair Meyer noted that the bill wuld be held in
Committee in order to resear ch t he fiscal costs.

Representative Lynn said he would cooperate with the w shes
of the Commttee.

HB 245 was HELD in Commttee for further consideration.
#HB326
1: 58: 47 PM

HOUSE BI LL NO._ 326

An Act relating to harassnent.

M CHAEL PAW.OWABKI , STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE KEVIN MEYER,
commented that HB 326 includes the publishing, posting or
distribution of material described as | ewd and/ or obscene in
the definition of harassnment. He noted that the issue arose
froma constituent whose photos were taken from a consensual
situation and then as the rel ationship ended, those pictures
were used to harass that person.

It is obvious that the Al aska Statutes are not keeping up
wi th technol ogy. Wth the availability of small digital
caneras & phones has changed the way that photos can be
taken and used to harass individuals. He reiterated that HB
326 changes current statute to include the publishing or
posting of |lewd or obscene pictures in the definition of
har assnent .

M. Pawl owski noted the attached three zero notes.

2:01: 12 PM

Co-Chair Meyer reiterated that a constituent of his had
brought the | egislation forward.

2:01: 29 PM

Representative Holm asked if the zero note would create a
potential problem for the Departnent of Law. He questioned
if there was an indication of prosecution comng forward and
asked if the note should be classified as indeterm nate.

2: 02: 08 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 01/31/06 1:38 P. M



M. Pawl owski understood that the departnents could absorb
any change to the definition. He clarified that harassnent
is not happening as nuch as they believe it will be in the
future

Co- Chair Meyer pointed out it would be classified as a C ass
B m sdeneanor. Representative Hol m asked nore information
regardi ng how the inpact will be handl ed.

2: 03: 05 PM

Representative Kerttula indicated the she had questions for
Ms. Carpeneti, Departnent of Law.

2: 03: 59 PM

ANNE CARPENETI, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, LEGAL SERVI CES
SECTI ON- JUNEAU, CRIM NAL DI VI SI ON, DEPARTMENT OF LAW
offered to answer questions of the Commttee.

Representative Kerttula asked about the information
attenpting to be outlawed by passage of the bill and if
conduct and speech were included. She thought that the
State would be creating problens [inaudible]. She inquired
about the limted jury option and how difficult would it be
to show if infringenent were substantial. She asked if it

woul d be dependant upon each case.

Ms. Carpeneti acknow edged that was correct. She noted that
the case that brought the legislation forward al so invol ved
anonynous phone calls. The legislation is |ess speech and
nore conduct oriented.

2: 05: 26 PM

Representative Kerttul a enphasi zed that it could happen, and
wanted it noted for the record. M. Carpeneti agreed.

2: 05: 58 PM

Vice Chair Stoltze questioned if it could beconme a free
speech i ssue.

M. Paw owski interjected that there had been discussion
regarding that in the House Judiciary Conmttee. The
distinction is that the conduct is not judged and based on
the interpretation of the person who the picture is of, but
rather the intent of the person publishing it. He stressed
that woul d be when conduct crosses the line. The proposed
legislation is intended to address that place.

2: 07: 27 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 01/31/06 1:38 P. M



MARC ANTRI M COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTI ONS, noted
that the Adm nistration does support the |egislation. He
provided coments on a case that happened wthin the
Departnment of Corrections in the late 1990's at the Lenon

Creek Correctional Center. In that case, an enpl oyee was
accused of *“guy cruising”. The nystery was unsolved. The
Departnent noticed a website called “My Fantasy Rape”, which
was created by a student on canmpus in Col orado. He
enphasi zed that these are “serious” concerns.

2:14:54 PM

Representative Kerttula i nquired what change that person had
been prosecuted under. Conmi ssioner Antrim replied that
Col orado is one of seven states that has a crimnal |iable
statute. Those statutes have been attached on the basis of
free speech. Not many accused have been prosecuted under
it, however, that person was charged with inpersonating a
police officer and falsifying docunents. Al aska was not

able to file charges on that person in Col orado.

2:15: 50 PM

Representative Kerttula advised that the proposed statute
woul d not change that and that Al aska still would not be
able to “take” that person with passage of this bill.
Conmi ssi oner Antrim agreed.

2:16: 20 PM

Represent ati ve Hawker referenced the proposed new | anguage:

“(6) publishes, posts, or distributes electronic or
printed photographs, pictures, depictions, or filns
that show the genitals, anus, or female breast of the
ot her person or show that person engaged in a sexua
act*“.

Representati ve Hawker asked what would happen if it were a
conposite photograph adjusted digitally and could that
provide an affirmative defense.

Ms. Carpeneti advised that behavior could not be covered
under the proposed | anguage.

Representative Hawker asked if it was the intent that it not
be covered in the bill.

2:18:10 PM

Co- Chair Meyer thought that it would be covered sonepl ace
else in the bill. M. Paw owski interjected that it is not
covered in the House Judiciary Conmittee version. The

i ssued addressed by Legislative Legal is free speech and how

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 01/31/06 1:38 P. M



it beconmes nore problematic reaching away from the actua
per son. HB 326 attenmpts to walk a “fine line” between
addressing free speech issues and staying on the correct
line. Legislative |legal warned about “going to that place”
using the actual conposite pictures.

2:19: 04 PM

Represent ati ve Hawker observed that with the ability used in
digital inmagery, there could be a | oophole. Co-Chair Meyer
agreed, noting that the only intent with the proposed
legislation was to prevent wusing current technology to
har ass. Ms. Carpeneti advised that the legislation is a
limited approach because of 1% Amendment concerns.

2:19:50 PM

Representative Kerttula pointed out that it could fall into
t he i ndecent phot ography statute.

2:20:13 PM

Representative Hawker menti oned “consensual behavi or”
related to the 1% Amendnent. He asked if a prosecutor could
accuse soneone engaged in consensual behavior. Co- Chai r

Meyer pointed out that issue was addressed in the House
Judiciary Comm ttee.

Ms. Carpeneti stated that the photos in the proposal would
have been taken consensually, which is how it differs from
i ndecent phot ographi c view ng, photos taken w thout consent.
These are taken with consent and then used w t hout consent.

Representative Hawker stated that the critical elenent is
that the burden of proof mnust be established in order to
det erm ne harassnent.

2:21: 27 PM

Representative Stoltze asked if there had been discussion of
the depictions. M. Pawl owski said there has been no
di scussion in Conmttee. He recalled that Legislative Legal
Services agreed to include the |anguage as a definition of
phot ograph versus how a picture can be printed. That is
standard |anguage and was lifted from the Al aska Statute
(AS) 11.61.123 definition.

2:22:17 PM

M. Pawl owsKki commented that the Ilanguage key to
Representative Hawker reference is that it would have to be
limted to what is actually on that person’s body. The

proposed legislation is limted, but the behavior exists and
nmust be st opped.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 01/31/06 1:38 P. M



2:22:48 PM

Representati ve Foster MOVED to REPORT CS HB 326 (JUD) out of
Commttee wth individual recomendations and wth the
acconpanyi ng zero notes. There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was
so ordered.

CS HB 326 (JUD) was reported out of Conmttee with a “do
pass” recommendation and with three zero notes by the Al aska
Court System the Departnent of Law and the Departnent of
Public Safety.

#

ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 2:24 P. M

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 01/31/06 1:38 P. M



